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November 15, 2016

To the Honorable City Council, Honorable Mayor, and Citizens of the City of Saratoga Springs, Utah:

These financial statements have been prepared by the City of Saratoga Springs Finance Department in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for local
governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Utah State law
requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the close of each fiscal
year a complete set of audited financial statements. This report fulfills that requirement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016.

The City’s management is responsible for the accuracy of the report, as well as the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the report
is complete and accurate in all material respects. To provide a basis for management to make these
representations, the City maintains a comprehensive system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against loss of assets or material misstatement in the financial
statements. This level of assurance is an inherent limitation in a system of internal controls. They should
be cost-effective, with cost of such controls not exceeding the related benefit.

Litz & Company P.C., a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the basic financial
statements contained in this report. With this type of audit, the independent auditors render an opinion,
with reasonable assurance, as to whether the basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, are fairly presented and free of any material misstatement. Audit procedures included extensive
testing and analysis of transactions, balances, and systems. The unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the basic
financial statements signed by Litz & Company P.C. is located at the beginning of the financial section.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

CITY PROFILE

The City of Saratoga Springs is a municipality governed by a six member legislative body consisting of
an elected Mayor and five-member Council. The City was incorporated in 1997 and operates under a
Council-Manager form of government established by ordinance. Policy-making and legislative authority
are vested in the City Council.

The City Council is responsible for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees,
and hiring the City’s manager, among other things. The City’s manager is responsible for carrying out



the policies and ordinances of the legislative body, for overseeing the day-to-day operations for the
City, and for appointing heads of the various departments. The Council and Mayor are elected on a
non-partisan basis. Council members and the Mayor serve four-year staggered terms.

The City provides many municipal services including police, fire and medical response, parks, recreation,
library, water, sewer, garbage, public improvements, streets, planning, zoning, and administrative services.
This report includes the financial statements of the funds required to report those activities, organizations
and functions which are related to the City and are controlled by or financially accountable to the City
Council.

BUDGETARY CONTROL

The City Council is required to adopt a final budget no later than June 22 of the fiscal year. The annual
budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control. Budgets are prepared for all
governmental fund types including the general fund, capital improvement funds, and debt service funds.
The City Council approves all City budgets at the department level (general government, public safety,
highways and public improvements, parks and recreation). Budgetary control is maintained at the
department level where expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations. Department heads may make
transfers within a department. The City Council may amend the budget by ordinance during the budget
year but must hold a public hearing after appropriate public notice to increase governmental fund’s
budget before it can adopt the ordinance.

LOCAL ECONOMY AND TRENDS

The City of Saratoga Springs is located in Utah County, Utah, on the northwest shores of Utah Lake in
the center of Utah’s Wasatch Front Metropolitan Area. The City is 20 miles south of Salt Lake City and
30 minutes by freeway from the Salt Lake International Airport. It is an exciting pro-development
community which boasts a high quality of life that includes beautiful lakeshore living, a quiet and rural
atmosphere, great air quality, superb views and an excellent central location between the Provo/Orem
and Salt Lake City metro areas.

The City’s population (2016 Census Estimate) of 28,652 residents is a suburban population that works
along the Wasatch Front but desires a quiet suburban area in which to live. The City is among the top
ten highest growth cities in Utah. As a region, the northern Utah County area has also experienced rapid
development and growth in recent years. The physical infrastructure to continue rapid residential growth
is in place and regular planning ensures that transportation expansions map to population growth rates.

Land developed in the City has taken the form of large “master planned” communities with progressive
land-use and zoning practices which have resulted in quality and diverse housing styles. Since the
incorporation of the city, several ordinances have been adopted and a land development code has been
created that encourages planned developments, clustering of residential units, preservation of open space,
creation of parks and trail systems, and the maximization of views along Utah Lake shore.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING
Revenne Forecasting

The City has endorsed the recommended practices issued by the Natzonal Advisory Council on State and Local
Budgeting addressing budgeting and financial planning, specifically the six revenue forecasting practices.

Multi-year revenue/resoutce projections
Maintaining an in-depth understanding of revenues/resources
Assessing the effects of potential changes to revenue source rates and bases

Periodically estimating the impact and potential foregone revenue/resources as a result
2



of policies that exempt from payment, provide discounts and credits, or otherwise favor
a particular category of taxpayers or service users

Developing a process for achieving consensus on the forecast of revenues used to
estimate available resources for a budget

Preparing and maintaining a revenue manual that documents revenue sources and factors
relevant to present and projected future levels of those revenues

Forecasting Methodology

The City uses gualitative and guantitative approaches to forecasting revenues that include, but are not limited

to:

Trend Analysis

Economic Reviews and Publications

Departmental Surveys

National, State, and Local Policy Changes
Comparing Revenue Collections against Projections
Consensus, Expert, and Judgmental Forecasting

Both forecasting methods include global, national, state, and local analysis that may affect revenues and

financial planning.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City of Saratoga Springs recognizes its duty to its citizens and other interested parties to account for public
funds and resources. The Policies and Objectives hereinafter are set forth to establish guidelines for fiscal
accountability, full disclosure, and planning. These financial management policies provide a basic framework for
the overall fiscal management of the City. These policies represent a foundation to address changing circumstances
and conditions, and to assist in the decision making process. In addition, these policies represent guidelines for
evaluating both current and future activities.

The financial policies represent long-standing principles and practices that have enabled the City to maintain
tinancial stability. The policies are reviewed annually to represent current public policy decisions. The Council as
part of the budget process adopts these policies annually.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
City Council Long-term Goals
- Improve communication to foster engagement between the City, the residents, businesses, and
schools
Create a successful environment for business “Class A”, dining, and retail to foster an
environment of work, live, and play
Foster high quality, long-term growth and development
Improve the experience of the development community in our City
Build 1* class recreation facilities
Improve staff satisfaction to develop and retain committed employees

Develop a long range, sustainable plan with quantifiable metrics to increase “infrastructure” staff
roads proportionally, etc.
Create a unique lakefront for economic & residential development



Update on Major Projects

Project Estimated Cost | Description

Marina Pump Station $4.6 million To provide water source in the south end of the City

Zone 1 North Pond $3.2 million Pond will service the north and middle of the City.

Inlet Park Outfall Upsize | $3.1 million Creating alternate sewer line through Legacy Farms to
accommodate flow capacity.

Police Facility $3 million New facility for Police and Justice Court departments.

Zone 2 South Pond $2.3 million Serve as storage for the Marina pump project

Zone 2 North Pond $2.3 million Provide capacity in the north part of the City

ULDC Pump Station $1.9 million Takes water out of the ULD canal and provide a water
source for the north and middle part of the city.

Foothill South Pipeline | $1.75 million Provide transmission of water from Israel Canyon

and Pump Station Pond to Fox Hollow

Awards and Acknowledgements

The City of Saratoga Springs received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from the
Government Finance Officer’s Association (GFOA) for the City’s adopted budget beginning for the
periods beginning July 1, 2015, July 1, 2014, July 1, 2013, July 1, 2012, and July 1, 2011. In order to qualify
for the award program, the City’s budget document was judged proficient in several categories including
policy documentation, financial planning, and organization.

The City of Saratoga Springs received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting from the GFOA for years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015. In order to qualify for the award,
the staff must prepare comprehensive annual financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency
and full disclosure.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of the staff of the Administration and Finance Departments. We would like to
express our appreciation to Litz & Company P.C., certified public accountants, for their professional
service and assistance. We would also like to thank the Mayor and members of the City Council for their
interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible and
progressive manner.

Respecttully submitted,

(s M) s

Mark Christefisen — City Manager Chelese M. Rawlings — Fma e Manager
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Saratoga Springs, Utah

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saratoga Springs (City)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notesto the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements aslisted in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management isresponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statementsin accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of interna control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes eval uating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each mgjor fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saratoga Springs, Utah, as of June 30, 2016, and the
respective changesin financia position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the general and specia revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

5145 S Airport Road (1750 W) Stite 100 « Roy, Utah 84067 « (801) 825-4100 » Fax (801) 773-6934
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 12 through 25 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of thefinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section, as listed in the
table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financia
statements.

Theintroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financia statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have al so issued our report dated September 30, 2016,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the interna control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report isan integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Sandardsin considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ﬁaf “ CL'MUJ-G.Wﬁ/, f)(-

Roy, Utah
September 30, 2016
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2016

The following narrative is presented to facilitate a better understanding of the City’s financial position and
results of operations for the year ended June 30, 2016. When read in conjunction with the letter of transmittal
and the notesto thefinancial statements, the financial highlights, overview and analysis should assist the reader
to gain a more complete knowledge of the City’s financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s government-wide net position (the amount by which assets exceed liabilities) as of June
30, 2016, were $223,940,044. Of this amount, $30,566,807 (unrestricted net position) is available to
meet ongoing financial obligations.

The City’s government-wide net position increased by $34,953,607. Of this amount, business-type
activities increased by $22,373,953, arise of 22.7 percent, and the governmental activities increased
by $12,579,654 an increase of 14.0 percent when compared to last fiscal year.

The City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $15,648,803, a decrease
of $1,106,425 (6.6 Percent) compared to the beginning of this year’s fund balance amount. The
decrease in fund balance in comparison to last fiscal year is attributable to a decrease in unassigned
fund balance and committed for capital projects. Of the combined total fund balance, $2,768,845 is
available for spending at the discretion of the City (unassigned fund balance).

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. The unassigned fund balance of the
Genera Fund at June 30, 2016, totaled $2,768,845 and is 19.3 percent of the Genera Fund total
revenues for the year and 17.7 percent of total governmental fund balance.

The City’s total debt had a net decrease of $1,966,816 during fiscal year 2016. This represents a 6.8
percent decrease over the prior year, thisis aresult from required debt service payments and no new
issuance of bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of this report includes four parts: 1) the independent auditors’ report on financia
statements and supplementary information; 2) this segment, management’s discussion and analysis; 3) the
basic financial statements; and 4) supplementary information. Within the basic financial statements are two
distinct types of financial statements, 1) the government-wide financial statements, and 2) the fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements are also an integral part of the basic financia statements.
The City’s basic financial statements are presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for Sate and Local Governments, as amended.

Immediately following the notes to the financia statements, the supplementary information includes balance
sheets and income statements for non-major governmental funds, as well as other budgetary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements provide aview of City

finances asawhole, similar to aprivate-sector business. These statementsinclude the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities.

12



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2016

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the City’s assets and liabilities, and the resulting difference
between the assets and liabilities, or net assets. Net assets (and the related change in net assets from year to
year) are probably the most important financial measurement to enable an understanding of the financial
position of the City, and whether financial position improves or deteriorates each year. To assess the overall
health of the City, additional non-financial factors, such as changes in the property tax base, the condition of
the City’s infrastructure, etc. should be considered.

The Statement of Activities shows how the City’s net assets changed as a result of its operations during the
most recent fiscal year. To understand the basis of how these numbers are determined, it is important to note
that changes in net assets are reported whenever an event occurs that requires a revenue or expense to be
recognized, regardless of when the related cash is received or disbursed (the accrual basis of accounting). For
example, most revenues are reported when the revenues are legally due, even though they may not be collected
for some time after that date; and an obligation to pay a supplier is reported as an expense when the goods or
services are received, even though the bill may not be paid until sometime |ater.

There aretwo distinct types of activities reflected in the government-wide statements: governmental activities
and businesstype activities. Governmental activities are those supported primarily by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, while business-type activities are those in which all costs (or at least a significant
portion of costs) are intended to be recovered through user fees and charges. The governmental activities for
the City of Saratoga Springs included Genera Government (Legidlative, Administrative, Utility Billing,
Treasurer, Recorder, Attorney, Justice Court, Non-Departmental, Buildings and Grounds, Elections, and
Planning and Zoning); Public Safety (Communications, Police, and Fire, Building Inspection); Public Works
(Building Inspection, Streets, Engineering, Public Improvements and GIS); and Recreation (parks & open
spaces, recreation, library, and civic events). The business-type activitiesinclude Water, Sewer, Storm Drain,
and Garbage.

Fund Financial Statements: The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based on the purposes for which
the funds are to be spent aswell as how the activities are to be controlled. The two broad categories of funds
are: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — At the fund level, the focus is on changes in short-term spendabl e resources and the
balance available to spend, rather than the long-term focus used for determining government-wide numbers.
Because the focus is so different between fund statements and government-wide statements, reconciliations,
between the two types of statements is necessary to understand how the numbers differ. Such reconciliations
are provided for the reader on pages 30 and 32. The city has three governmental type funds. These are the
general fund, theinternal servicefund and the capital projectsfunds. Two of these are considered major funds:
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-34 of this report.

- The General Fund isused to account for all financial resources of the City that are not accounted for

by a speciaized fund. More specifically, the general fund is used to account for ordinary operations
such as collection of tax revenues and general government expenditures. The City adopts an annual
appropriation budget for the genera fund. On page 31, a budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for the general fund to demonstrate budgetary compliance.

Internal Service Fund is used to account for the central financing of goods or services provided to
various departments of the City or other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City
currently has one internal service fund. The Street Lighting Fund provides storage, repair, and
mai ntenance.

13



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2016

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financia resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital improvements. These funds do not account for capital improvements
financed by the proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The only proprietary fund type used by the City is enterprise funds. The basic proprietary fund
financial statements can be found on pages 35-37 of this report.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (@) that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or servicesto the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other
purposes. The City currently operates enterprise fundsfor the City-owned water system, sewer system,
storm drain and garbage.

Notes to the financial statements contain additional information important to a complete understanding

of the information contained in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Notesto thefinancial
statements are located after the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THECITY ASA-WHOLE

Net assets— The following table presents summary information for the Statement of net assetsfor the years
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

City of Saratoga Springs
Comparative Summary of Net Assets
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total %
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 Change
Current and other assets $ 278 $ 238 $ 227 $ 173 $ 505 $ 411 22.9%
Capital assets 91.1 77.5 127.4 111.8 218.5 189.3 15.4%
Total Assets 118.9 101.3 150.1 129.1 269.0 230.4 16.8%
Long-Term debt 58 55 21.6 232 274 28.7 -4.5%
Other liabilities 10.2 5.5 7.4 7.2 17.6 12.7 38.6%
Total liabilities 16.0 11.0 29.0 30.4 45.0 1.4 8.7%
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 86.4 73.2 107.0 89.9 1934 163.1 18.6%
Unrestricted 16.5 17.1 14.1 8.8 30.6 25.9 18.1%
Total net assets $ 1029 $ N3 $ 1211 3 987 $ 2240 $ 189.0 18.5%
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As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
At June 30, 2016, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $224.0 million (net assets)
compared to $189.0 million at June 30, 2015. This would indicate an improved financial position in
comparison to last fiscal year. Roughly 86.4 percent at June 30, 2016, and 86.3 percent at June 30, 2015,
of these amounts are represented by the investment in capital assets, net of debt still outstanding relating
to the acquisition of those assets. Due to the nature of long-term assets (not easily convertible to liquid
assets) they are not considered to be available for spending or appropriation. Further, even though the
presentation here shows capital assets net of related debt, it should be understood that the repayment of
this debt does not come from the capital assets themselves, but comes from other resources. The increase
in the City’s investment in capital assets net of related debt of $35.0 million was due to developer capital
contributions, routine acquisitions of capital assets, repayments of related debt, and depreciation expense.

The other sub-classification of net assets is unrestricted. The baance of $30.6 million at June 30, 2016
and $25.9 million at June 30, 2015, which is unrestricted, indicates that this amount may be used to meet
general, on-going financial obligations without limitations established by debt covenants or other lega
requirements. The increase from last fiscal year is the result of an increase in charges for services for
ongoing revenues.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH

MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2016

The following graph represents the percentage of restricted and unrestricted net assets as discussed above.
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2016

Changes in Net Assets — As taken from the Statement of Activities, the following table signifies the
changesin net assets for fiscal years 2016 and 2015.
City of Saratoga Springs
Summary of Change in Net Assets
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total %
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 Change

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 105 $ 87 $ 171 $ 11 $ 276 $ 198 39.4%

Operating grants and contributions 0.2 0.8 - - 0.2 0.8 -75.0%

Capital grants and contributions 10.8 15 17.8 6.6 28.6 81 253.1%
General Revenues

Property Tax 3.0 28 - - 3.0 28 7.1%

Other Taxes 43 4.0 - - 43 4.0 7.5%

Investment earnings 0.2 01 01 01 0.3 0.2 50.0%

Other - - - - - - -100.0%

Total Revenues 29.0 17.9 35.0 17.8 64.0 35.7 79.3%
Expenses
General government 25 21 - - 25 21 19.0%
Public safety 6.0 5.2 - - 6.0 5.2 15.4%
Highways and public improvements 6.0 54 - - 6.0 54 11.1%
Parks and recreation 20 27 - - 20 27 -25.9%
Interest on long-term debt 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1 0.0%
Water utility - - 6.3 55 6.3 55 14.5%
Sewer utility - - 42 32 4.2 32 3L.3%
Garbage utility - - 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.0%
Storm drain utility - - 11 11 11 11 0.0%
Total Expenses 16.6 155 125 10.7 2.1 26.2 11.1%

Change in net position 126 24 24 7.1 35.0 95 268.4%
Net position beginning 0.3 87.9 9.7 91.6 189.0 179.5 5.3%
Net position ending $ 1029 % 903 $ 1211 ¢ 987 $ 2240 $ 189.0 18.5%

Net position increased from governmental activitiesin fiscal year 2016 approximately $12.6 million and $0.3
million in fiscal year 2015. Theincrease is primarily due to increased charges for services and capital grants
and contributions. Expenses for governmental activities were higher with a $1.1 million increase. Thisis
mainly due to increase in personnel and expenses for capital projects.

Net position increased $22.4 million in fiscal year 2016 and increased $6.9 million in 2015 for business-type

activities. The revenues for business-type activities increased in charges for services and capital grants and
contributions due to increase impact fee collection, and devel oper contributions.
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS, UTAH

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2016

Revenues — For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City’s government-wide revenues are approximately $64.0
million as compared to the prior year total revenues of $35.7 million. Key elements of this change were as

follows;

Of the City’s total revenues, about 11.4 percent in fiscal year 2016 and 19.0 percent in fiscal year 2015 resulted from

taxes (under half of which is from property taxes) as shown in the following table:

City of Saratoga Springs
(in millions of dollars)

Government-wide

Tax Revenues Total %

2016 2015 Change
Property tax $ 3.0 $ 28 7%
General sales and use tax 3.2 2.9 10%
Franchise fees 0.2 0.2 0%
Energy Tax 0.9 0.9 0%
Total $ 7.3 $ 6.8 7%

Charges for services increased in fiscal year 2016 about $7.8 million and increased 43.2 percent of
total revenues in fiscal year 2016 from 55.5 percent in fiscal year 2015. The increase is due to

increased collections in general government and business type activities service fees.

Operating and capital contributions combined increased by $19.9 million in fiscal year 2016. This
was due to more capital and operating grant revenues received, combined with developer

contributions.

Investment and other income, which isacombination of interest earnings and gain on the sale of capital

assets, increased by $0.1 million in fiscal year 2016.
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City of Saratoga Springs
Government-Wide Revenues by Source
June 30, 2016 and 2015
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Expenses— The City’s government-wide total expenses cover arange of services. For the year ended June 30,
2016, the City’s total expenses are $29.1 million compared to the prior year of $26.2 million. Of the $2.9
million increase, general government expenses increased $0.4 million, public safety increased $0.8 million,
highways and public improvements increased $0.6 million, parks and recreation decreased $0.7 million,
interest on long-term debt stayed the same, and business-type activities increased by $1.8 million.

Governmental Activities:

Revenue Highlights:

- Taxes encompass a sizable source of revenue for the City’s governmental activities: Roughly $7.3
million or 25.2 percent in fiscal year 2016 and $6.8 million or 38.0 percent in fiscal year 2015 of total
revenues from governmental activities. The $0.5 million increase is majorly from property and other
taxes.

Charges for services increased to $10.5 million or 36.2 percent of total revenues from governmental
activitiesin fiscal year 2016 from $8.7 million or 48.6 percent of total revenues in fiscal year 2015.
The increase in fiscal year 2016 is a result from increased building, planning and engineering fee
collection.

Grant and contribution revenue denotes approximately $11.0 million or 38.0 percent in fiscal year
2016 and $2.3 million or 12.8 percent in fiscal year 2015 of total revenues from governmental
activities. The $8.7 million increase was the effect more developer contributions to the City.
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Expense Highlights:

- Genera government expenses of around $2.5 millioninfiscal year 2016 and $2.1 millionin fiscal year
2015 represented 15.1 percent in fiscal year 2016 and 13.6 percent in fiscal year 2015 of total expenses
from governmental activities. General government includes: Legidative, Administration, Utility
billing, Treasury, Recorder, Attorney, Justice Court, Elections, and non-departmental. The $0.4
million increase is due mainly dueto an increase in personnel.

Public safety expenses were $6.0 million or 36.2 percent in fiscal year 2016 and $5.2 million or 33.5
percent in fiscal year 2015. The expenses are higher due to increased personnel.

Highways and public improvements were $6.0 million or 36.2 percent in fiscal year 2016 and $5.4
million or 34.87 percent in fiscal year 2015. The $0.6 million increase is due to road and general
capital projectsin conjunction with increased personnel.

Parks and recreation expenses were $2.0 million or 12.1 percent in fiscal year 2016 and $2.7 million

or 17.4 percent in fiscal year 2015. The $0.7 million decrease is due to less capital projects and less
purchase of equipment.

As aresult, total net expenses that were funded by general revenues were $4.9 million. Tax revenues of $7.3
million were sufficient to fund net expensesin fiscal year 2016.

The following presents the costs and net costs (total cost less fees generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid) of the City’s programs:

City of Saratoga Springs
Costs of Governmental Activities
(in millions of dollars)

Total Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services Total %

2016 2015 2016 2015 Change
General government $ 25 3 21 $ (25 $ (@3 92.3%
Public safety 6.0 5.2 45 4.1 9.8%
Highways and public improvements 6.0 54 (6.5 21 400.5%
Parks and recreation 20 27 (0.5 (0.9 25.0%
Interest on long-tem debt 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 100.0%
Total $ 166 $ 155 $ (49 $ 46 -206.5%
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Based on Government-Wide Financial Statements. See page 26.

Business-type Activities:

The City’s business-type activitiesincreased net position by $22.4 million. Key elements of thisincrease were
asfollows:

Revenue Highlights:

Charges for services for business-type activities increased by $6.0 million for fiscal year 2016. This
ismainly due to increased impact fees in the business type-funds.

Operating and capital grants and contributionsincreased about $11.2 million in fiscal year 2016. The
$11.2 million increase is due to developer contributions.

Investment earnings stayed approximately the same in fiscal year 2016.

Expense Highlights:

21

Personnel expenses increased approximately $0.1 million due to an increase in positionsin the utility
funds.

Supplies and maintenance expenses increased by $0.9 million. The increase is due to increased water
meter expenses coupled with increasesin sewer capital projects.

Professiond services expenses increased by $0.4 million. The increase is due to higher consulting
servicesto prepare for various upcoming capita projects

Treatment and sanitation expenses increased approximately $0.1 million due to increase in sewer
treatment costs.
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Business Type Funds - Program Revenues and Expenses
FY2016
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of resources available for appropriation. Such information is helpful in
assessing the City’s financial requirements.

Asof June 30, 2016, the aggregate fund balance of the City’s governmental funds was $15.6 million, adecrease
of $1.1 million in comparison with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Infiscal year 2016, about $2.8 million
or 18.0 percent of this amount is unassigned fund balance compared to about $3.0 million or 17.9 percent in
fiscal year 2015. Unassigned fund balance categories are available for appropriation by the City Council at
their discretion.

Restricted fund balance which have externally enforceable limitations on use are not available for new
spending and are approximately $12.5 million in fiscal year 2016 and $13.4 million in fiscal year 2015. The
remainder of the fund balance of $0.4 million is assigned. Of the assigned fund balance, $0.4 million is
assigned to street lighting. In fiscal year 2015 the assigned fund balance was about $0.3 million with $0.3
million attributed to street lighting.

The Genera Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. Utah State code establishes a 5.0 percent
minimum ($736,459) and a 25.0 percent maximum ($3,682,294) limit to the amount that may be accumulated
asthe fund balancein the General Fund. Asof June 30, 2016 the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund
was $2,768,845 and was $913,449 below the 25.0 percent limit. The unassigned fund balance decreased by
$220,231 in fiscal year 2016. The main reason for decreased fund balance is more transfers to the capital
projects fund to fund currently budgeted projects. The unassigned fund balance in fiscal year 2015 increased
by $920,651.
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As of June 30, 2016, the restricted fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund was $12.5 million. In fiscal year
2015 therestricted fund balance was $13.4 million and the remai ning fund balances combined were $.4 million.
The $0.9 million decrease in restricted fund balance resulted from more capital outlay spending and increased
revenues.

As of June 30, 2016, the assigned fund balance in Street Lighting was $0.4 million. In fiscal year 2015 the
assigned fund balance was $0.3 million. The increase of fund balance resulted from increased revenuein fiscal
year 2016 as compared to fiscal year 2015.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net assets of the City’s enterprise funds totaled about $121.1 million at June 30, 2016, as compared to $98.7
million at the end of fiscal year 2015. Net position at the end of fiscal year 2016 and 2015 for each of these
funds were:
City of Saratoga Springs
Proprietary Funds

Fund Amount Change
2016 2015
Water Utility $ 78,689,538 $ 60,856,061 $ 17,833,477
Sewer Utility 22,607,717 19,753,420 2,854,297
Strom Drain Utility 19,651,732 17,866,905 1,784,827
Garbage Utility 118,387 217,036 (98,649)
Tota $ 121 067,374 $ 98,693,422 $ 22,373,952

The net increase in net position from the prior year was $22.4 million as compared to an increase of $6.9
millionin fiscal year 2015. Operating revenues increased $1.1 million as compared to a $2.3 million increase
change in fiscal year 2015.

The Water Utility operating revenues increased by $0.3 million due to increased service fees most likely due
to more users than the prior fiscal year combined with an increase in rates. The Sewer Utility operating
revenues increased by $0.7 million in comparison to the previous fiscal year due to an increase in rates in
conjunction with more users. The Storm Drain Utility operating revenues increased minimally, which the
small increase was a result of increased storm utility fees collected. The Garbage Utility operating revenues
increased minimally.

Water Utility net position invested in capital assets net of related debt increased by $13.2 million in fiscal year
2016 primarily dueto increased accumul ated depreciation, routine acquisition and disposition of capital assets,
and depreciation expense. Unrestricted net position increased about $4.7 million.

Sewer utility net position invested in capital assets net of related debt increased by $2.3 million, unrestricted
net position increased by $0.5 million. Theincreasein net position invested in capital assets net of related debt
was due to the net acquisition of capital assets, and depreciation expense.

Storm Drain Utility net positioninvested in capital assets net of related debt increased $1.6 million, unrestricted
net position increased by $0.2 million resulting in a net increase of total net position of less than $1.8 million.
Theincrease in net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt was due to the net acquisition of capital
assets, and depreciation expense.
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Garbage Utility unrestricted net position decreased by $0.1 million. This is mostly due to the purchase of
recycle cansto provide free recycling to residents.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSBUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for expenditures of lessthan $0.4 million
(net increase) can be summarized as follows:
- Lessthan $0.3 million increase in general government resulting from increasesin general government
personnel.
More than $0.1 million increase in public safety from Wildland expenses, public safety personnel.
Minimal increasein highways and streets.
More than $0.1 million decrease in Parks and recreation for decreased contract services.

Total actual expenditures came in $1.1 million below the final budget. Parks and recreation department and
Public Safety did not keep within their legal spending authority. The differences between actual and the fina
budget can be briefly summarized as follows:

- The final budget was $0.7 million more than the actual expenditures in general government. This
difference was attributed to spending coming in under budget in salaries and wages, supplies,
education and training, and contract services
The final budget was $0.3 million less than the actual expendituresin public safety. This difference
was attributed to salaries and wages al so professional contract services.

The final budget was $1.0 million more than the actual expenditures in highways and public
improvements. This difference was attributed to coming in under budget in salaries and wages,
employee benefits, genera road maintenance, snow removal and vehicle lease payments.

Thefinal budget was $0.3 million less than actual expendituresin parksand recreation. Thedifference
was coming in over budget in the recreations department in conjunction with going over budget in the
construction of a park.

Actual revenues of $14.4 million were above the final budgeted revenues of $12.4 million by $2.0 million.
Thisis mainly due to increased taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: The City’s investment in capital assets for is governmental and business-type activitiestotaled
217.0 million (net of $83.2 million accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2016, as compared to $188.6 million
(net of $73.9 million accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2015. This investment in capital assets includes
land, water rights, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, water capacities, culinary water system, secondary
water irrigation system, sewer system, storm drain system, and construction in progress.

Magjor capital asset additions during the year ended June 30, 2016 include:

Governmental Activities:
$9.9 million Devel oper Streets Infrastructure Contributions

$4.2 million Riverside Drive
$2.0 million Market Street
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Business-type Activities:

$13.8 million Developer Water Infrastructure Contributions
$2.4 million Devel oper Sewer Infrastructure Contributions
$1.7 million Developer Storm Drain Infrastructure Contributions

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 — Capital Assets on pages 45-47 of
this report.

Long-Term Debt: Long-term debt for governmental activities decreased by over $0.3 million in comparison
with fiscal year 2015. Business-type activities debt decreased in fiscal year 2016 by $1.7 million when
compared with fiscal year 2015. Please see note 12 for details concerning long-term debt on pages 55-58.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The unemployment rate for Utah County was 3.3 percent compared with the State unemployment rate
of 3.7 percent and a national rate of 4.9 percent.

Thefiscal year 2016 City budget does not include a property tax increase. The City Council adopted
the certified tax rate for the General Fund. In accordance with Utah Statutes, the certified tax rate is
intended to generate the same amount of property tax revenue as was received the prior year plus
revenue for “new growth” occurring in the City. All other revenue sources have been estimated on a
conservative basis using a multi-year trend analysis and assuming no significant changes in the local
economy. The City’s approach to budgeting includes preparation of a five-year capital plan. The
long-term nature of the City’s financial planning system allows decision makers to better understand
the true effect of policy decisions. One of the most powerful aspects of the multi-year financial
planning isits capability to recognize trends over time and begin at an early point to consider necessary
stepsto alter the long-term forecasted position of the City.

REQUESTSFOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Saratoga Springs’ finances
to everyone with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report requests
for additional information should be addressed to:

City of Saratoga Springs
Attn: Finance Department
1307 N. Commerce Drive, Suite 200
Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045-5302
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash - restricted
Accounts receivable - net
Due from cther funds
Due from other governmental units
Inventory
Net pension assets
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Water rights
Construction work in process
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deposits payable
Net pension liability
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year
Noncurrent liabilities due in more than one year

Total liahilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred inflows
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 24238193 $ 15223544 39,461,737
- 2,787,320 2,787,320
845,617 893,838 1,739,455
296,275 3,786,861 4083136
213961502 - 2,396,502
- 18477 18477
6,972 23 6,995
20,148,298 53554 20,201,852
- 15,720,925 15,720,925
399,427 19,372 418,799
6!0591984 - 6,059,984
5,283410 1,513,599 6,797,009
104,303,928 146,665,387 250,969,315
(46,345,512 (36,825,349 (83,170,861
89,849,535 127,147,488 216,997,023
1,297,990 191,697 1,489,687
1,297,990 191,697 1,489,687
$ 118931084 $ 150,049,248 268,980,332
$ 994989 $ 1,672,926 2,667,915
304,526 31,116 335,642
149,461 3,933,675 4,083,136
8,282,306 135,838 8,418,144
2,060,568 195,159 2,255,727
535,757 1,616,420 2152177
3,440,254 21,347,168 24,787,422
15,767,861 28,932,302 44,700,163
290,553 49572 340,125
290,553 49572 340,125
86,379,952 106,993,285 193,373,237
16,492,718 14,074,089 30,566,807
102,872,670 121,067,374 223,940,044
$ 118931084 $ 150049248 $ 268980,332

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Function/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Highways and public works
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water utility
Sewer utility
Storm drain utility
Garbage utility
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 2462194 $ 4,985,682 - 8 - % 252288 $ - % 2,522,888
6,012,919 1,372,884 170,927 - (4,469,108) - (4,469,108)
5,966,661 1,641,262 68,101 10,796,710 6,539,412 - 6,539,412
2,023421 2,555,462 - - 532,041 - 532,041
133171 - - - (133171) - (133171)
16,598,967 10,555,290 239,028 10,796,710 4,992,061 - 4,992,061
6,353,950 10,473,751 - 13,686,713 - 17,806,514 17,806,514
4,203,587 4,675,210 - 2,359,017 - 2,830,640 2,830,640
901,351 958,500 - 1,723,560 - 1,780,709 1,780,709
1,059,777 961,029 - - - (98,748) (98,748
12,518,665 17,068,490 - 17,769,290 - 22,319,115 22,319,115
$ 20117632 $ 27,623,780 230028 $ 28566000 $ 4992061 $ 22319115 $ 27,311,176
General revenues:
Property taxes 2,969,689 - 2,969,689
General sales and use tax 3,215,928 - 3,215,928
Franchise tax 212,144 - 212,144
Energy tax 953,656 - 953,656
Investment earnings 190,746 92,225 282,971
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 8,043 - 8,043
Transfers 37,387 (37,387) -
Total general revenues 7,587,593 54,838 7,642,431
Change in net paosition 12,579,654 22,373,953 34,953,607
Net position - beginning 90,293,016 98,693421 188,986,437
Net paosition - ending $ 102872670 $ 1210673714 $ 223,940,044
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The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016

CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Due from other funds
Due from other governmental units

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Committed for - capital projects
Assigned to - street lights
Unassigned fund balance

Total fund balances

M ajor Funds Tota
General Capital Special Governmental
Fund Projects Revenue Funds
$ 11,049,700 $12811414 $ 3770719 $ 24238193
731177 80,777 27,663 845,617
296,275 - - 296,275
2,396,502 - - 2,396,502
$ 14,479,654 $12802191 $ 404742 $ 27776587
$ 578014 $ 400034 $ 1641 $ 994,989
149,461 - - 149,461
304,526 - - 304,526
8,282,306 - - 8,282,306
9,314,307 400,034 16941 9,731,282
2,396,&)2 - - 213961502
- 12,492,157 - 12,492,157
- - 387,801 387,801
2,768,345 - - 2,768,845
2,768,345 12492157 387,801 15,648,803
$12892191 $ 404742 $ 27776587

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances  $ 14,479,654

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Balance Sheet Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

Total fund balances - governmental funds: $ 15,648,803

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 89,849,535

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 2,396,502

Long-term liahilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds payable (3,250,000)
Capital lease payable (219,583)
Unfunded pension liability (1,046,159)
Compensated absences payable (506,428)
(5,022,170)
Net position of government activities $102,872,670

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

M ajor Funds Total
General Capital Special Governmental
Fund Projects Revenue Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 7141996 $ - 3 - $ 714199
Licenses and permits 1,231,004 - - 1,231,004
Intergovernmental revenue 1,114,882 - - 1,114,882
Charges for services 4.120,343 4.387,645 191,531 8,699,519
Fines and forfeitures 514,587 - - 514,587
[nvestment earnings 137,752 50,860 2134 190,746
Other 106,387 - 3,793 110,180
Total revenues 14,366,951 4438505 197458 19,002,914
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 2,204,995 - 140,334 2,345,329
Public safety 6,268,225 8121 - 6,276,346
Highways and public works 1,021,610 3937779 - 4,959,389
Parks and recreation 1,472,563 2,488,643 - 3,961,206
Capital expenditures - 2,319,328 - 2,319,328
Debt service:
Principal retirement 160,000 - - 160,000
Interest and fiscal charges 133171 - - 133,171
Total expenditures 11,260,564 8753871 140334 20,154,769
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures 3,106,387 (4,315,366) 57124 (1,151,855)
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital asset 8,043 - - 8,043
Transfersin 78,201 3,543,046 - 3,621,247
Transfers out (3412,860) (171,000) - (3,583,860)
Total other financing sources and uses__ (3,326,616) 3,372,046 - 45430
Net change in fund balances (220,229) (943,320 57,124 (1,106,425)
Fund balances - beginning of year 2,989,074 13435477 330677 16,755,228
Fund balances - end of year $ 2768845 $12492157 $ 387801 _$ 15648803
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (1,106,425

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capitalized expenditures exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capitalized expenditures 8,167,678
Depreciation expense (5,245.371)
2,922,307
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Change in unavailable revenue - property taxes 209421
209,421
Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statement of activities, but do not
appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial resources. 9,920,856
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.
Change in unfunded pension liability 326,883
Change in accrued compensated absences (7,560)
319,323
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on the statement of activities.
Principal repayments on bonds 160,000
Payment on capital lease 154,172
314,172
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 12579654

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Genera Fund - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:

Taxes:

Property

Sales

Franchise

Energy
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
I nvestment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Parks and recreation

Delt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital asset
Transfersin
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Variance with

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 2570350 $ 2570350 $ 2,760,268 $ 189,918
2,400,000 2,400,000 3,215,928 815,928
239,800 239,800 212,144 (27,656)
750,000 750,000 953,656 203,656
582,100 582,100 1,231,004 648,904
782,202 807,834 1,114,882 306,998
4,674,974 4,569,788 4,120,343 (449 ,445)
419,700 419,700 514,587 9,887
20,800 20,800 137,752 116,952
30,000 30,000 106,387 76,387
12,469,926 12,300,422 14,366,951 1,976,529
2,569,426 2940524 2,204,995 (735,529)
5,817,960 5,927,610 6,268,225 340,615
2046475 2,055,775 1,021,610 (1,034,165)
1,312,039 1,183,035 1472563 289,528
150,000 150,000 160,000 -
142,450 142,450 133171 -
12,038,350 12,399,3H4 11,260,564 (1,139,551
431,576 (8,972 3,106,387 3,116,080
- - 8,043 8,043
- 78,027 78,201 -
(329,860) (329,360) (3412,860) (3,083,000)
(329,860) (329,860) (3,326,616) (3,074,957)
101,716 (338,832 (220,229) 41,123

2,989,074
$ 2768845

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Fund - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfietures
Investment earnings
Other
Total

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Highways and public works
Parks and recreation
Capital expenditures
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds
Bond issuance cost
Transfersin
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ - - $ - $ -
157,500 157,500 191,531 34,031
- - 2134 2134
- - 3,793 3,793
157,500 157,500 197,458 39,958
201,975 201,975 140,334 (61,641)
201,975 201,975 140,334 (61,641)
(44,475) (44,475) 57,124 101,599
(44,475) (44.475) 57,124 101,599
330,677
$ 387,801
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CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016

Maior Funds
Water Sewer Storm Drain Garbage
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9816837 $ 4155553 $ 1147100 $ 104004 $ 15223544
Cash - restricted 2,787,320 - - - 2,787,320
Accounts receivable - net 386,437 347,357 51534 108,510 893,838
Due from other funds 3,782,361 4,500 - - 3,786,861
Inventory 18477 - - - 18477
Total current assets 16,791.482 4507410 1198634 212514 22710040
Noncurrent assets:
Pension assets 18 5 - 23
Capital assets:
Water rights 15,774,479 - - - 15,774,479
Construction work in process 3,108 16,264 - - 19,372
Water capacities 70,619,626 - - - 70,619,626
Culinary water system 18,553,685 - - - 18,553,685
Secondary water system 8,431,383 - - - 8,431,383
Sewer system - 26,052,946 - - 26,052,946
Storm drain system - - 23,007,747 - 23,007,747
Equipment 558,748 811,736 143,115 - 1,513,599
Less: Accumulated depreciation (24.417599) (7,955,158) (4.452.592) - (36,825,349)
Total capital assets 89523430 18,925,788 18,698.270 - 127147438
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows 155,085 36,612 191,697
Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 624038 $ 757196 $ 197565 $ 94127 $ 1,672,926
Due to other funds 3,838,461 47,607 47,607 - 3,933,675
Compensated absences 8,631 1,804 - - 10435
Customer deposits payable 127,340 8,498 - - 135,838
Accrued interest payable 31,116 - - - 31,116
Bonds and contracts payable - current 1,604,000 - - - 1,604,000
Capital leases payable - current 1985 - - - 1985
Total current liabilities 6235571 815105 245172 94127 7.389975

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 9,222 2,408 - - 11,630

Net pension liability 159,359 35,800 - - 195,159
Bonds and contracts payable 21,334,540 - - - 21,334,540
Capital leases payable 998 - - - 998
Total noncurrent liabilities 21504119 38.208 - - 21,542 327

Total liabilities 27,739,690 853313 245172 94127 28.932.302

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension deferred inflows 40787 8785 49572

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 69,369,227 18,925,788 18,698,270 - 106,993,285

Unrestricted 9320311 3681929 953462 118387 14,074,089
Net position 78689538 22607717 19651732 118387 121067374
Total —$106470015 $ 23460815 $ 10896904 $ 212514 $ 150049248

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating revenue:
Charges for services
Connection and other fees
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Supplies and maintenance
Professional services
Administration
Power and pumping
Treatment and sanitation
Depreciation
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenue (expense):

Investment earnings
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital contributions

Impact fees
Transfer out

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

M ajor Funds
Water Sewer Storm Drain  Garbage
Utility Utility Utility Utility Total
$4372041 $ 3176051 $ 439906 $ 961029 $ 8949027
2,483,335 244,552 - - 2,727,887
6.300 - - - 6.300
6.861.676 3420603 439,906 961,029 11683214
523,942 126,129 74,072 - 724,143
971,750 1,260,031 76,264 70,596 2,378,641
87,405 - - - 87,405
1,107,437 610,063 128,504 59,621 1,905,625
446,767 55,436 6,742 - 508,945
323,885 1,334,324 - 929,560 2,587,769
2,580,753 811,065 615,769 - 4,007,587
- 6539 - - 6.539
6,041,939 4,203,587 901,351 1.059.777 12.206.654
819,737 (782.934) (461.445) (98.748) (523.440)
64,350 23,657 4118 100 92,225
(312,011) - - - (312,011)
(247.661) 23657 4118 100 (219.786)
572076 (759.327) (457.327) (98.648) (743.226)
13,686,713 2,359,017 1,723560 - 17,769,290
3,612,075 1,254,607 518,594 - 5,385,276
(37.387) - - - (37.387)
17,833477 2,854,297 1,784,827 (98,648) 22,373,953
60.856.061 19.753420 17.866.905 217,035 93693421

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payment to employees
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Advances to other funds
Advance from other funds
Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds of capital-type special assessments
Principal paid on capital lease and debt
Interest paid on capital lease and debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends received
Net cash provided (used) by
investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents (deficit) - ending
Cash and cash equivalents make up

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash restricted
Total cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used)

by operating activities

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable
(Decrease)/increase in compensated absences
(Decrease)/increase in deposits payable

Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Contribution of capital assets

Major Funds
Water Sewer Storm Drain  Garbage

Utility Utility Utility Utility Total
$ 6789381 $338058 $ 43180 $ 952837 $11554,681
(1,85.,784)  (2,085,676) 68,613 (980,539) (4,849,386)
(525,859) (124,397) (74,072) - (724,328)
(1,207,437) (610,063) (128,504) (59,621) (1,905,625)
3,304,301 560,447 297,917 (87,323 4,075,342
363,032 - - - 363,032
(338,055) - (277,393 - (615,448
24977 - (277,393 - (252,416)
(544,1006) (779,617) (478942) - (1,802,665)
3,612,075 1,254,607 5185% - 5,385,276
(1,626,727) - - - (1,626,727)
(312,784) - - - (312,784)
1128458 474,990 39,652 - 1,643,100
64,350 23657 4118 100 92,225
64,350 23657 4118 100 92,225
4,522,086 1,059,094 64,294 (87,223 5,558,251
8,089,892 3053495 1,050,905 191,228 12,385,520
$12611978 $ 4112589 $ 1115199 $ 104005 $ 17943771
9,816,887 4,155,553 1,147,100 104,004 15223544
2,787,320 - - - 2,787,320
12,604,207 4,155,553 1,147,100 104,004 18,010,864
$ 819737 $ (782984) $ (461445 $ (98748) $ (523440)
2,580,753 811,065 615,769 - 4,007,587
(83105) (49,654) (8,026) (8192 (148977)
18478 - - - 18478
(40455) 570,654 151,619 19,617 701,435
(1,917) 1732 - - (185)
10,810 9634 - - 20444
2484564 1343431 759,362 11,425 4,598,782
$3304301 $ 560447 $ 297917 $ (87,323) $ 4075342
$13686,713 $ 2359017 $ 1723560 $ - $17,769,290

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Saratoga Springs (City) was incorporated in December 1997. The City operates under a council
manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety
(police, fire, inspection and animal control), streets and highways, public utilities (refuse collection, water
sewer, and storm drain), parks and recreation and general administrative services. The financial statements of
the City of Saratoga Springs have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

A.

Reporting Entity

The City of Saratoga Springsisamunicipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six council
members. The accompanying financial statements present the financial affairs of the government and
its operations.

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity
was made by applying the criteria set forth in the related Governmental Accounting Standards. The
City is considered to be financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting
majority of that organization’s governing body, or there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City. The City is adso
considered to be financially accountable for an organization if that organization is fiscally dependent
on the City.

The City has no component units.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial statements consist of both government-wide statements (the statement of
net position and the statement of activities) and fund statements. The government-wide statements
focus on the City asawhole, whilethe fund statements focus on individual funds. Primary government
activities are distinguished between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties
for goods or services. The effects of inter-fund activity have been eliminated from the government-
wide statements except for the residual amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities and inter-fund services provided.

The Statement of Net Position presents the City’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred
inflows, with the difference reported as net position. Net position is restricted when constraints placed
upon it is either externally imposed or isimposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legidation.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable within
a specific function. The City does not allocate general government (indirect) expenses to other
functions. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a particular
function. Taxes and other revenues not meeting the definition of program revenues are reported as
general revenues.
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CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Continued

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Separate financia statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Mgjor
individual governmental funds and mgjor individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

M easur ement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all digibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The use of financia resources to acquire capital assets are shown as assets in the government-wide
financial statements, rather than reported as expenditures in the governmental fund financial
statements. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the government-wide financia
statements, rather than as another financing source in the governmental fund financial statements.
Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt in the government-wide financia statements are reported as a
reduction of the related liability, rather than expenditures in the governmental fund statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (generally within sixty days) to pay
liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under the accrual method of accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditure
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded when payment is due.

Sales and use taxes, franchise taxes and earned but un-reimbursed state and federal grants associated
with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
asrevenues of the current fiscal year. Property taxes are measurable as of the datelevied and available
only when cash is received by the county treasurer prior to the City’s fiscal year end and remitted to
the City within sixty days of itsfiscal year end.

The City reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund isthe primary operating fund. It isused to account for all financial
resources of the City not accounted for by a separate, specialized fund.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed for specified purposes. The City has one special
revenue fund that operates the street light program funded by property owner assessments.

Capital Projects Fund- The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital improvements (other than those financed by proprietary
funds.)
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CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Continued

The City reports the following proprietary fund types as enterprise funds:

Water Utility Fund — The Water Utility Fund accounts for the water distribution system of the City
for its residents.

C. M easur ement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Continued
Sewer Utility Fund — The Sewer Utility Fund accounts for the sewage collection systems of the City
for itsresidents

Storm Drain Utility Fund — The Storm Drain Utility Fund accounts for the various storm drain
collection and retention systemsin the City for itsresidents.

Garbage Collection Utility Fund — The Garbage Collection Utility Fund accounts for the collection
and disposal of garbage for City residents.

During the course of operations the government has activity between fundsfor various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financid statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financia statements. Asageneral rule the effect of
inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptionsto
this genera rule are payments to the General Fund by the Enterprise Funds for providing
administrative, billing, and facility costs for such funds. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise funds are charges to customersto the system. Operating expensesfor enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capita assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

D. Budgets
Annual budgets are prepared and adopted before June 22 for thefiscal year commencing the following

July 1, in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah Cities. State law requires
budgeted revenues to equa budgeted expenditures, and legal control is exercised at the department
level, administration, public safety, public works, etc.  Once a budget has been adopted, it remainsin
effect until it has been formally revised. Budgets for the general fund, specia revenue, and capital
projects funds are legally required and prepared and adopted on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Therefore, no reconciliation between budgetary schedules and the GAAP statements is
required.
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CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Continued

The Budgetary Comparison schedules presented in this section of the report are for the City’s general
fund and special revenue funds. Original budgets represent the revenue estimates and spending
authority authorized by the City Council prior to July 1. Final budgets represent the original budget
amounts plus any amendments made to the budget during the year by the City Council through formal
resolution. Final budgets do not include unexpended balances from the prior year because such
bal ances automatically lapse to unassigned fund balance at the end of each year.

Utah State allows for any unassigned fund balances in excess of 5% of total revenue of the genera
fund to be utilized for budget purposes. The law also allows for the accumulation of afund balancein
the general fund in an amount equal to 25% of the total estimated revenue of the general fund. In the
event that the fund balance, at the end of the fiscal year, isin excess of that allowed, the City has one
year to determine an appropriate use and then the excess must be included as an available resource in
the general fund budget.

Taxes

In connection with budget adoption an annual tax ordinance establishing the tax rate is adopted before
June 22 and the City Recorder isto certify the tax rate to the County Auditor before June 22. Budgets
for the generd, special revenue, and capital projects funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The above procedures are authorized by the Utah
Code Sections 10-6-109 through 10-6-135.

All property taxes levied by the City are assessed and collected by Utah County. Taxes are attached
as an enforceable lien as of January 1, are levied as of October 1, and are due November 30; any
delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty. Unless the delinquent taxes and penalties are paid before
January 15, alien is attached to the property, and the amount of taxes and penalties bears interest from
January 1 until paid. If after five years, delinquent taxes have not been paid, the County sells the
property at atax sale. Tax collections are remitted to the City from the County monthly.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, property, plant, equipment, water rights, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable
governmental or busi ness-type activities columnsin the government-wide financia statements. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and
an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historica cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

Capital Assets - Continued

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are carried at cost or estimated historical cost.
Depreciation of these assetsis computed by use of the straight-line method over their estimated useful
livesasfollows:

Buildings and improvements 40 Years
Sewer collection system 30 Years
Water distribution systems 40 Years
Infrastructure and improvements 10-25 Years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 Years
Other improvements 10-40 Years
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CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Continued

G.

Long-Term Obligation

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported asliabilitiesin the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

Equity Classifications
Equity is classified in the government-wide financial statements as net assets and is displayed in three
components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

In the fund financial statements; governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance
is further classified as Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned or Unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance classifications are restricted by enabling legidation. Also reported if, (a)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance classification include those fundsthat can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the governments highest level of decision making
authority, the City Council. Fund balance commitments can only be removed or changed by the same
type of action (for example, resolution) of the City Council.

Assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Also includes all
remaining amounts that are reported in governmental funds, other than the general fund that are not
classified as non-spendable, restricted nor committed in the General Fund, that are intended to be used
for specific purposes. Itis the City’s policy to require City Council action for the assignment of funds.

Unassigned fund balance classification is the residua classification for the Genera Fund. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. The General Fund is
the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance.

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Continued
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted. It is the City’s policy to use committed funds first then
assigned funds and lastly use unassigned funds when all are available for use in satisfying the
expenditure.

Proprietary Fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date of
three months or less when acquired by the City.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
regquires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows/I nflows of Resour ces

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources which represents a consumption of net position that applies to afuture
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
City also records deferred outflows for changes to the net pension liability as provided by the cost
sharing defined benefit pension systems administered by Utah State Retirement System (URS).

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition
of net position that appliesto a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The governmental has two items which qualifies for reporting in this
category. First, unavailable revenues, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenue from one source: property taxes. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
Second, the city recognizes deferred inflows for changes to the net pension liability as provided by the
URS.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) an additions to/deductions from URS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Note 2 - Deposits and | nvestments

As of June 30, 2016, the City had the following investments:

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Quality Ratings
PTIF Investments $ 37,509,630 85 days* not rated
Totd $ 37,509,630

* Weighted-average maturity

Note 2 - Deposits and | nvestments - Continued
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A. Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits and investments for the City are governed by the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code
Annotated, Title 51, Chapter 7, “the Act”) and by rules of the Utah Money Management Council (“the
Council”). Following are discussions of the City’s exposure to various risks related to its cash
management activities.

Deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be recovered. The City’s policy for managing custodial credit risk is to adhere to the
Money Management Act. The Act requires all deposits of City funds to be in a qualified depository,
defined as any financia institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the federal government
and which has been certified by the Commissioner of Financia Institutions as meeting the
requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council. The City’s
deposits in the bank in excess of the insured amount are uninsured and are not collateralized, nor do
state statutes require them to be. The City’s bank balances at June 30, 2016 were $3,374,700 of which
$3,124,700 were uninsured and uncollateralized.

I nvestments. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of itsinvestments that are in the possession
of an outside party. The City policy to minimize custodial credit risk is to follow the Utah Money
Management Act and the City’s approved investment policy. The City currently invests only in the
State of Utah PTIF as discussed below.

B. Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk that the counterparty to an investment transaction will not fulfill its obligations.
The City’s policy for limiting the credit risk of investments is to comply with the Money Management
Act. The Act requires investment transactions to be conducted only through qualified depositories,
certified dedlers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities. Permitted investments include
depositsof qualified depositories; repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first-
tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s
Investor Services or Standard & Poors; bankers acceptances; obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
government sponsored enterprises; bonds and notes of political subdivisions of the State of Utah; fixed
rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher by two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations; and shares in a money market fund as defined in the Act. The City is
also authorized to invest in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF), an external pooled
investment fund managed by the Utah State Treasurer and subject to the Act and Council requirements.
The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, and depositsin the PTIF are not
insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah. The PTIF operates and reports to participants on
an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses, net of administration fees, of the PTIF are
allocated based upon the participants’ average daily balances. The fair value of the PTIF investment
pool exceeded its amortized cost basis by $159,053 at June 30, 2016.

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The City manages its exposure to declines in fair value by following its
investment policy by investing mainly in the PTIF and by adhering to the Money Management Act.
The Act requires that the remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of
availability of the funds to be invested. The Act limits the remaining term to maturity of commercial
paper to 270 days or less and fixed rate negotiable deposits and corporate obligations to 365 days or
less. Maturities of the City’s investments are noted in the table at the beginning of Note 2.

Note 2 - Deposits and | nvestments - Continued
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D. Restricted Cash
The City maintains cash in accounts held by third party custodians that are restricted for the use of
bond payments. The amount of restricted cash at June 30, 2016 was $2,787,320.

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable — Unear ned Revenue

Accounts receivabl e are recorded net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $44,000 in the enterprise funds.
Unearned revenue in the governmental funds consist of property taxes receivable that will not be collected in
sufficient time to be classified as revenue in the current fiscal year.

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:
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Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in process
Total

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total

Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Water rights
Construction in progress
Total

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Water capacity
Culinary water system
Secondary water irrigation system
Sewer system
Storm drain system
Equipment
Total

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water capacity
Culinary water system
Secondary water irrigation system
Sewer system
Storm drain system
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance June Balance June
30, 2015 Additions Deletions 30, 2016
$ 20,201,852 $ - $ (53554) $ 20,148,298
2241758 55,105 (1.897.436) 399427
22443610 55,105 (1,950,990) 20,547,725
6,059,984 - 6,059,984
4,910,506 372,903 - 5,283,409
84.694.949 19618503 (9.524) 104,303,928
95,665,439 19,991,406 (9,524) 115,647,321
(1,473,934) (286,481) - (1,760,415)
(2,882,888) (285,571) - (3168,459)
(36.745.857) (4,673.319) 2539 (41.416,637)
(41,102.679) (5.245371) 2539 (46,345511)
54.562.760 14,746,035 (6,985) 69,301,810
$ 77006370 _$ 14801140 _$ (1957975 _$ 89849535
$ - $ 53554 % - $ 53,554
15,699,176 75,311 - 15,774,487
853,095 19372 (853,094) 19373
16,552,271 94,683 (853,094) 15,847,414
10,950,988 - - 10,950,988
63,647,128 14,533,629 (112,984) 78,168,773
8,117,962 313421 - 8,431,383
22,940,187 3,112,760 - 26,052,947
20,768,662 2,239,085 - 23,007,747
1.482.299 31,302 - 1513,601
127,907,226 20,230,197 (11,984) 148,125,439
(5,638,893) (547,549) - (6,186,442)
(14,037,167) (1,610,588) 2,397 (15,645,358)
(1,801,805) (401,788) - (2,203,593)
(6,847,229) (755,667) - (7,602,896)
(3,702,228) (611,760) - (4,313,988)
(792.855) (80,233) - (873,088)
(32,820,177) (4,007,585) 2,397 (36,825,365)
95.087.049 16,222.612 (9.587) 111,300,074

$ 111639320 _$ 16317295 _$ (862681) _$ 127147488
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Note 4 - Capital Assets— Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 240571
Public safety 209,302
Highways and public works 3,277,020
Parks and recreation 1518478

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 5245371

Business-type activities:

Water utility $ 2,580,752
Sewer utility 811,064
Storm drain utility 615,771

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 4,007,587
Combined depreciation expense $ 9,252,958

Note 5-Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation, compensatory |eave pay and other employee benefit amounts are accrued when
incurred in proprietary funds (using the accrua basis of accounting). In the governmental funds (using the
modified accrual basis of accounting) only the unpaid amounts due to retired or terminated employees are
recorded as liabilities. All City employees are paid from the general fund. The total compensated absences
liability is reported in the government wide financia statements as long-term debt in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards. Based on historical estimates, the City estimates that $260,223 of the
compensated absences balance will be due in the next year.

Note 6 - Retirement Plans

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan description: Eligibleplan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah retirement Systems.
The Utah Retirement Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:

Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); Firefighters
Retirement System (Firefighters System); are multiple employer, cost sharing, public employees,
retirement systems.

- The Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a mixed agent and cost-sharing,
multiple-employer retirement system;

Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System); and
the Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Safety and
Firefighters System) are multiple employer, cost sharing, public employees, retirement systems.
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Note 6 - Retirement Plans— Continued

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees beginning
service on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement
Systems, are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.

The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49
of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans are amended statutorily
by the State Legidature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration
of the Systems under the direction of the Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The
Systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a
component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend
the benefit terms. URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah
Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S, Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org.

Benefits provided: URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as
follows:

Summary of Benefits by System

Years of service required Benefit percent per year of

1 **
System Final Average Salary and/or age eligible for service COLA
Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 yearsany age 2.0% per year dl years Up to 4%
25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65*
Public Safety System Highest 3 years 20 years any age 2.5% per year up to 20 years; Up to 2.5% to
10 years age 60 2.0 % per year over 20 years 4%
4 years age 65 depending
onthe
employer
Firefighters System Highest 3 years 20 yearsany age 2.5% per year up to 20 years, Up to 4%
10 years age 60 2.0 % per year over 20 years
4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Employees System Highest 5 years 35 yearsany age 1.5% per year all years Upto 2.5%
20 years any age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year all years Upto 2.5%
System 20 years any age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

*with actuarial reductions

** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for Judges, whichisa
compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year,
athough unused CPI increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.
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Contributions: As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to
contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board.
Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employees contributions
(where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates are as follows:

Utah Retirement Systems

Paid by Employer
Employee Employer Contribution
Paid for Employee Rates

Cortributory System

111 - Local Governmental Division Tier 2 N/A N/A 16.670%
Noncontributory System

15 - Local Governmental Division Tier 1 N/A N/A 18.470 %
Public Safety Retirement System

49 - Other Divison B Noncortributory Tier 1 N/A N/A 32.200 %

122 - Other Divison A Cortributory Tier 2 N/A N/A 20.390%
Firefighters System

32 - Divison B Tier 1 N/A 16.710 % 6.760%

132 - Division B Tier 2 N/A N/A 10.750%

Tier 2 ratesinclude a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the
Tier 1 plans.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the empl oyer and empl oyee contributionsto the Systemswere asfollows:

Employer Employee

System Contributions Contributions
Noncontributory System $ 398.883 N/A
Public Safety System 279.168 -
Firefighters System 23.989 -
Tier 2 Public Employees System 112,743 -
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 57.161 -
Tier 2 DC Only System 2,376 N/A

Total Contributions ) 874,320 ) -

Contributions reported are URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributionsin the Tier
2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilitiesin the Tier 1 Systems.

Note 6 - Retirement Plans— Continued
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Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows of
Resour ces Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, we reported a net pension asset of $6,995 and a net pension liability of $2,255,727.

Net Net

Proportionate Pension Pension

Share Asset Liability
Noncontributory System 0.2668688% $0 $1,510,073
Public Safety System 1.3970959% $0 $681,715
Firefighters System 0.3757619% $0 $63,939
Tier 2 Public Employees System 0.0886421% $194 $0
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System 0.4654713% $6,801 $0
Total Net Pension Asset/Liability $6,995 $2,255,727

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1,
2015 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net pension
asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the Systems during the plan
year over the total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, we recognized pension expense of $498,859. At December 31, 2014, we
reported deferred outflowsif resources and deferred inflows of resourcesrelated to pensionsfor thefollowing
SOUrces:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $120,260 $133,747
Changes in assumptions $0 $187,074
Net difference between projected and actual earnngs on pension plan
investments $892,121 $0
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and
proportionate share of contributions $20,593 $19,304
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $456,713 $0
Tota $1,489,687 $340,125

Note 6 - Retirement Plans— Continued
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$456,713 was reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to

pensions from the following sources:

Year Ended December 31,

Deferred Outflows
(inflows) of Resources

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

$167,465
$167,465
$168,950
$196,809
($6,597)
($1,244)

Actual assumptions: Thetotal pension liability inthe December 31, 2015, actuarial valuation was determined

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75 Percent
Salary increases 3.50 — 10.50 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset alocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates

of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

Real Return Long-Term expected

Target Asset Arithmetic portfolio real

Asset class Allocation Basis rate of return
Equity securities 40% 7.06% 2.82%
Debt securities 20% 0.80% 0.16%
Real assets 13% 5.10% 0.66%
Private equity 9% 11.30% 1.02%
Absolute return 18% 3.15% 0.57%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%
Totals 100% 5.23%

Inflation

2.75%

Expected arithmetic nominal return

7.98%

Note 6 - Retirement Plans— Continued
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The 7.50% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.75%, areal return of
4.75% that is net of investment expense.

Discount rate: The discount rateis used to measurethetota pension liability was 7.50 percent. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually
required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions,
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the tota
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the discount rate:
The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate
at 7.50 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.50 percent) than the current rate:

1% Discount 1%

Decrease Rate Increase

System (6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)
Noncontributory System 3,190,635 1,510,073 107,141
Public Safety System 1,487,245 681,715 21,763
Firefighters System 505,485 63,939 (300,722)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 35,485 (194) (27,235)
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 11,560 (6,801) (219,953)
5,230,410 2,248,732 (419,006)

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plan

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are
generally supplemental plans to the basic requirements benefits of the Retirement Systems, but may also be
used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs
authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b), and 408 of the Internal Revenue code. Detailed information
regarding plan provision is available in the separately issued URS financia report.

City of Saratoga Springs participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah
Retirement Systems: 401(k) Plan, 457(b) Plan, Roth IRA Plan, and Traditional IRA Plan.

Note 6 - Retirement Plans— Continued
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Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal
year ended June 30 were as follows:

2016 2015 2014

401(k) Plan

Employer Contributions $ 403,660 $ 343,928 $ 287,319

Employee Contributions $ 113,748 $ 100,203 $ 77,033
457 Plan

Employer Contributions $ - $ - $ -

Employee Contributions $ 38,996 $ 43614 $ 44,277
Roth IRA Plan

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions $ 23,635 $ 13771 $ 12,269
Traditional IRA

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions $ - $ - $ 60

Note 7 - Interfund Transfers

Transfers were made which will not be repaid. Such amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were as
follows:
Fund TransfersIn Transfers Out

Governmental Activities

Generd $ 78,201 $ 3,412,860
Capital Projects 3,543,046 171,000
Weater Utilities - 37,387

$ 3,621,247 $ 3,621,247

The purpose of theinter-fund transfers is to meet the City’s ongoing cash needs for capital projects. In addition
to the transfers, the General Fund charged $1,810,199 to the enterprise funds for personnel and administrative
services and facility costs during the year.

Note 8 - Contingent Liabilities
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Amounts received or receivables from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by those grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. The City is
also involved in various claims and litigation that should be covered by insurance.

On November 25, 2009 the City entered into an agreement with the Central Utah Water Conservancy District
(Digtrict) to obtain delivery of water through District facilities equal to 10,000 acre feet. The City is obligated
to pay a one-time development charge of $6,200 per acre foot ($62,000,000 for 10,000 acre feet of water) to
the district which is due when the City takes delivery but no later than June 30, 2020. The City’s obligation is
backed by a contract with a landowner of property that is located within the City. The contract with the
landowner requires collateral in the amount of the obligation and the funding of an account twelve months
prior to the payment due dated. The purpose of the water rights is to provide water resources for land
development in the future as those parcels are devel oped.

On March 30, 2010 the City entered into an agreement with a neighboring municipality to provide police
services. For the year ended June 30, 2016 the City received $989,228 for the service.

The City has entered into an agreement with a developer to reimburse the developer for instaling added
improvements to the sewer system. The City will pay the developer $700 for each connection to the north
sewer system service area until the year 2020 up to a maximum of $2,200,396. The City makes payments to
the developer as fees are collected. The total amount paid to the developer for the year ended June 30, 2016
was $1,132,420.

Note 9 — Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2016. The projects include construction of roads and
utility system upgrades.
Remaining Estimated

Project Spent-to-Date  Commitment Completion
All projects $9,735 $417,506 June 2017

Note 10 - Risk M anagement

The City isexposed to variousrisks of lossrelated to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance
purchased from independent third parties and participation in the Local Governments Trust, apublic entity risk
pool. Settled claimsfrom these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coveragefor the past three years.
The City carries $2,000,000 of liability coverage and $1,000,000 of fidelity bond coverage for the treasurer.

The City participates in the public entity risk pool’s general liability insurance program. This program requires
annual premiums based on the City’s level of insurance and previous claims experience. The payment of the
premium indemnifies the City for claims that exceed its deductible amount. The risk pool is governed by the
inter-local risk pool agreement

Note 11 — L eases

Capital L eases
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The government has entered into |ease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of severa vehicles
for the various City departments. The lease agreements qualify as capital |ease obligations for accounting
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of
the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital |eases are asfollows:

Business Type Activities
Governmental Water Sewer Storm Drain
Activities Utility Utility Utility
Equipment $ 760,499 $ 19701 $ - $ -
Accumulated depreciation (462.341) (19,701) - -
Total $ 208158 % - 9 - 9 -

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June
30, 2016 were as follows:

Business Type Activities
Governmental Water Sewer Storm Drain
Year Ending June 30 Activities Utility Utility Utility
2017 $ 119,321 $ 1986 $ - $ -
2018 84,277 997 - -
2019 33,299 - - -
2020 1,106 - - -
2021 - - - -
Total minimum lease payments 238,002 2,983 - -
Less: amount representing interest (18419) - - -
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 219,583 $ 2983 % - $ -

Note 12 — L ong-term Debt

A. Special Assessment Bonds
The 2012 series bonds will be repaid from assessments levied against the property owners benefited
by the improvements made by the City in the special improvement district area. In the event that a
deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt service
payment is due, the government may draw from the established reserve fund to cover the deficiency.
The bonds have a stated rate of interest of 0.75% -4.45% with a maturity date of April 1, 2029.

The special assessment bonds arerecorded in the enterprise fund with annual debt service requirements
to maturity for special assessment bonds are as follows:

Note 12 — L ong-term Debt - Continued

A. Special Assessment Bonds - Continued

55



CITY OF SARATOGA
Notesto the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Total Debt

Year Ending June 30 Principal  Interest Service
2017 124,000 78,396 202,396
2018 126,000 75919 201,919
2019 127,000 72,997 199,997
2020 130,000 57,242 187,242
2021 133,000 55,037 363,321
2022-2026 724,000 230,321 830,882
2027-2029 473,000 106882 1149794

$1837000 $ 676794 $3135551

B. Revenue Bonds
The government has issued bonds where the government pledged revenues derived from the operation
of the utility system to pay the outstanding debt service. Revenue bonds are the obligations of the
enterprise funds and the amounts outstanding at year end are as follows:

2014 Water Revenue Bonds

On October 22, 2014, the City issued $9,995,000 in Series 2014 Water Revenue Bonds with amaturity
date of December 1, 2033 with an average coupon rate of 3.051%. The bonds were issued to (1)
financethe costs associated with acquiring, constructing, and equipping portions of the City’s culinary
water system, (2) refund the Series 2005, 2006, and 2009 Water Revenue Bonds, and (3) finance the
cost of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. Each principal payment is subject to prepayment and
redemption at any time, inwholeor in part, ininverse order, at the election of the City. Theredemption
priceisegual to 100% of the principa amount to be prepaid or redeemed, plus accrued interest, if any,
to the date of redemption. The City has pledged all water utility net revenues to pay the debt service
costs through maturity in 2033. During the year the net revenue before depreciation was $2,146,220
and the debt service requirement was $692,425.

Total Debt
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Service
2017 430,000 263,925 693,925
2018 435,00